

Index to Titles

Bylaws

Title 1 – Village Organization and Administration

- Ch. 1 – Meetings: Annual, Monthly, Special
- Ch. 2 – Village Officials: positions, how elected, term of offices
- Ch. 3 – Admonition for Officials
- Ch. 4 – Compensation
- Ch. 5 – Clerk
- Ch. 6 – Duties of Trustees
- Ch 7 – Monetary Issues
- Ch. 8 – Severability

Ordinances

Title 2 – Animals

- Ch. 1 – Dogs, Cats
- Ch. 2 – Farm Animals

Title 3 – Damage to Property; Obstruction, Water Pollution

- Ch. 1 – Streets, Sidewalks, Fountain, Buildings, Fences, Trees, Shrubs
- Ch. 2 – Digging up Pavement, Obstruction, Refuse
- Ch. 3 – Water Pollution

Title 4 – Health, Safety, Public Nuisance

- Ch. 1 – Disturbances and Obstructions
- Ch. 2 – Open, Unsealed Alcoholic Containers
- Ch. 3 – Guns, Bow and Arrow, Trapping
- Ch. 4 – Vegetation, Tree and Shrub Obstruction
- Ch. 5 – Swimming Pools
- Ch. 6 – Burning
- Ch. 7 – Damaged Structures
- Ch. 8 – Other
 - (a) General Nuisance, visual and auditory
 - (b) Burglar Alarms
 - (c) Animal defecation

Title 5 – Violations

Title 6 – Traffic

- Ch. 1 – Definition of Words, Phrases
- Ch. 2 – Exception for Emergency Vehicles
- Ch. 3 – Emergency Vehicles

- Ch. 4 – Enforcement of Provisions
- Ch. 5 – Authorized Duties of Police Commissioner
- Ch. 6 – Prohibited Signs
- Ch. 7 – Sign Indicators
- Ch. 8 – Village "Stop" Streets
- Ch. 9 – Night Parking
- Ch. 10 – No Parking Areas
- Ch. 11 – Parking Safety
- Ch. 12 – Speed Limits
- Ch. 13 – Pedestrian Safety
- Ch. 14 – Yielding Right of Way to Pedestrians
- Ch. 15 – Fire Apparatus, Fire Lanes
- Ch. 16 – Fire Hose
- Ch. 17 – Stops Before Crossing Sidewalk
- Ch. 18 – Driving on Sidewalks
- Ch. 19 – Driving on Closed Streets
- Ch. 20 – Vehicular Noise, Smoke
- Ch. 21 – Traffic Obstruction
- Ch. 22 – Disobeying Signs, Signals
- Ch. 23 – Business Stands, Loaded Trucks
- Ch. 24 – No Passing on Route 9
- Ch. 25 – Vehicular Obstruction
- Ch. 26 – One-Way Streets
- Ch. 27 – Yield Signs
- Ch. 28 – No Right Turn Sign

Title 1. Village Organization/Administration

Chapter 1. Meetings: Annual, Monthly Special

#1-101 The annual meeting of the Village shall be held on the second Tuesday in May in each year to elect officers and for the transaction of business specified in the warning of such meeting.

#1-102 The Trustees shall hold public meetings for the transaction of Village business at a stated time during the first week of every month at some convenient place. At the meeting they may hear such complaints of violation of the by-laws and ordinances of the Village as may be brought to them. Any change from the customary meeting time and place shall be appropriately posted.

Chapter 2. Village Officials: Positions, How Elected, and Term of Office

#1-201 The officers to be elected at the annual meeting shall consist of a Moderator, a clerk, and a Treasurer and a Collector of Taxes; the two latter may be one and the same person. The aforementioned positions are for a one-year term. The Village of Old Bennington shall have five Trustees elected for a two-year term. In order to ensure continuity of administration and experience on the Board of Trustees, three shall be elected in odd years and two in even years at the annual meeting. A majority vote of the Board is required to pass any measure. The Trustees shall elect their chair in their first meeting after the annual meeting.

Chapter 3. Admonition for Officials

#1-301 No Village official shall, directly or indirectly, be party in any contract with the Village for the purpose of a business transaction connected with the department to which his office belongs, and the Village shall not be liable to make payment under any such contract.

Chapter 4. Compensation

#1-401 Compensation to the Trustees or other officials for their services shall only be such as may be voted at the annual meeting, or a special meeting duly called for that purpose.

Chapter 5. Clerk

#1-501 The Clerk of the Village shall act as Clerk of the Trustees and shall be custodian of all Village books, vouchers, correspondence and other papers, except such as appertain to the

offices of the Treasurer. He/she shall attend the meetings of the Trustees and keep accurate records of actions taken by them with respect to the governance. In case of his/her disability or absence, the Trustees may appoint one of their members to act in his/her place. Further, a copy of any official Village correspondence written by any Trustee or Clerk must be distributed by the Clerk for the information of all Trustees.

Chapter 6. Duties of Trustees

#1-601 The Trustees shall see that these by-laws are executed, shall direct prosecutions for breaches thereof, and generally shall take care of affairs of the Village and perform the duties enjoined on them.

#1-602 The Trustees in May of each year appoint members to the Zoning Board of Adjustment for two-year terms, two one year and three the next. The Trustees appoint five members of the Planning Commission for four-year terms, also staggered. The Trustees appoint a representative to the Regional Planning Commission for a three-year term.

#1-603 The Zoning Administrative Officer is appointed by the Planning Commission with the approval of the Board of Trustees for a three-year term, or when a vacancy exists; and may be removed by the Trustees for cause at any time after consultation with the Planning Commission.

#1-604 The Trustees may engage one police officer or more whose compensation shall be based upon the services rendered and prevailing standards.

#1-605 (a) The Trustees, under guidance of our Road Commissioner, are responsible for hiring out for construction, repair and maintenance of our approximately three miles of roads within the Village.

(b) No person shall establish, construct, or relocate a private driveway, or entrance way for use by motor vehicles ("driveway") any portion of which is situated within the limits of a Village road or highway right-of-way, without first obtaining a permit for a curb cut from the Board of Trustees therefor.

(c) The Trustees are responsible for a periodic review and update of the Old Bennington Traffic Ordinances.

#1-606 The Trustees allocate monies for a regular tree planting program for Village rights-of-way and Village greens, and for maintaining trees on the Village greens. The Trustees are also responsible for the maintenance of the public drinking fountain on the Village green.

#1-607 The Trustees may, at their discretion, allow a group the right to improve and beautify the streets, sidewalks and greens of the Village. The Trustees may appropriate a sum for such purpose (flowers, etc.) to be included and acted upon in the annual budget.

#1-608 The Trustees may engage a person or persons to clear the snow from sidewalks that the Trustees designate or clear gutters as may seem advisable.

Chapter 7. Monetary Issues

#1-701 The Trustees shall authorize expenditures of Village funds in accordance with law.

#1-702 The Treasurer shall keep a book of accounts, showing all money expended under the direction of the Trustees and all Village orders drawn therefor. This accounting shall be divided into separate accounts as may be convenient, viz. road construction, road maintenance, sidewalk and gutter repairs, utilities, police, trees, park maintenance, etc.

#1-703 Village checks on orders for disbursement of funds shall be signed by at least three Trustees. No such check or order shall be drawn payable to bearer, nor shall any be drawn to cover more than one bill against the Village except in case of highway payments.

#1-704 All fines collected for the breach of any ordinance, by-law, rule or regulation of the Village, together with all fines collected for the breach of any section of the act of incorporation, shall be paid to the Treasurer of the Village.

Chapter 8. Severability

#1-801 A decision by a court of competent jurisdiction declaring any part of these By-Laws/Ordinances unconstitutional or inoperative shall not affect the validity of the remaining parts thereof.

Title 2. Animals

Chapter 1. Dogs and Cats

#2-101 All Village dogs are subject to the Dog Leash Ordinance of the Town of Bennington, Article 9, in its entirety.

Chapter 2. Farm Animals

#2-201 Persons who keep farm animals (e.g., sheep, goat, horse) must keep these animals confined to their property unless approval for riding a horse elsewhere is given by neighboring involved property owners and also with the consent of the Trustees. Any disturbance issues involved with keeping farm animals may cause loss of the privilege as determined by the Trustees at a hearing of involved parties.

Title 3. Damage to Property, Obstruction, and Water Pollution

Chapter 1. Streets, Sidewalks, Fountain, Buildings, Fences, Trees, and Shrubs

#3-101 No person shall damage, deface, or destroy any street, sidewalk, curb, gutter, sign, lamp post, building, fence, drinking fountain, tree, shrub, flower bed, lawn, or other property set, erected or made for the use or ornament of the Village; nor shall any person move, mutilate or destroy, without the consent of owners thereof, any sign, sign post, awning post or other private property of individuals, lawfully set, erected or placed in or upon any street, highway or public place in the Village.

#3-102 No person shall cut down, remove, mutilate or otherwise injure or destroy any fruit, shade or ornamental trees, or shrubs now growing, or which may hereafter be growing in any public common or other public right of way in the Village without the permission of the Trustees; and no person shall fasten any animal to any such tree or place or leave such animal in such a manner as to endanger or deface the same. Motorists or other persons who injure or destroy right-of-way trees shall be held financially accountable for all corrective measures deemed appropriate by a nursery professional or for tree replacement costs.

Chapter 2. Digging up Pavement. Obstruction, Refuse

#3-201 No person shall break or dig up the ground or pavement in any street, lane or alley, or on any sidewalk, or common in the Village, or erect any staging for buildings thereon or in dangerous or inconvenient proximity thereto, or deposit any stone, earth, brick, lumber or other building material thereon without first obtaining a written permit from the Trustees and

complying in all respects with the conditions of such permit, which permit shall state the time allowed for the continuance of the obstruction within the public highway or street.

#3-202 No person shall put in place, or cause to be put or placed in any street, lane, public green or other public place in the Village any garbage, household cast offs, ashes, branches, leaves or other kinds of refuse or obstruction except in such place and manner as the Trustees may prescribe; and no person shall leave upon any street in the Village any stone, wood, or other blocking devices used to hold vehicles.

Chapter 3. Water Pollution

#3-301 No person may discard or deposit any garbage or other potentially polluting substance in any stream, brook or pond in the Village, or on the bank thereof.

Title 4. Health, Safety, and Public Nuisance

Chapter 1. Disturbances and Obstructions

#4-101 No person shall engage in fighting, tumultuous or threatening behavior, or make unreasonable noise. Nor shall any person obstruct vehicular or pedestrian traffic or use abusive or obscene language in a public place.

Chapter 2. Open Container

#4-201 No person shall possess an open or unsealed container of alcoholic beverage while on any Village street, highway, sidewalk or Village green.

Chapter 3. Guns, Arrows, and Trapping

#4-301 No person shall, except in the performance of some duty required by law, discharge any arrow, gun, pistol, or any other firearm, whether loaded with bullets, balls, shot, BB, or powder, within the Village, including on his/her own premises, unless necessitated by an act of self-defense. Special discharge or trapping permits may be granted at the discretion of the Village Trustees.

Chapter 4. Vegetation, Tree and Shrub Obstruction

#4-401 Owners of Village property shall keep sidewalks and/or right-of-way bordering their property clear of dead trees and of shrubs, hedges or other vegetation that obstruct vision or

safe passage on sidewalks or roadway, at their expense, for the safety of pedestrians, cyclists and motorists. The Trustees shall give notice to owners, in writing, of any breach of this provision. In the event an owner fails to take adequate corrective action within two weeks of receipt of the Trustees' written notice, the Trustees may have the sidewalk or pedestrian way put in proper safe condition and charge the cost of the same to the owner.

Notwithstanding the above, the Trustees may have the sidewalk or pedestrian way put in proper safe condition and charge the cost of the same to the abutting owner if, in the opinion of the Trustees, the condition presents a safety hazard and the owner cannot or will not take corrective action upon written notice of the Trustees.

Chapter 5. Swimming Pools

#4-501 An owner of property upon which exists a swimming pool is required to fence in the pool in such manner as to prevent accidental entry and possible subsequent injury to individuals or animals. After written notice from the Trustees of a violation, each month the situation is not corrected constitutes a separate violation. Any pools that do not have fences as of the date of adoption of this Ordinance shall be brought into compliance within one year.

Chapter 6. Burning

#4-601 While Vermont State Air Quality Regulations prohibit outdoor burning, the Town of Bennington continues to issue permits for a one - to two-day period but it prefers to issue these only for "extreme circumstances." Such permits are granted for burning brush and leaves only; they exclude trash. Any Village resident who wishes to burn brush or leaves on his/her own property must first obtain a permit from the Town of Bennington Fire Warden. In the Village of Old Bennington no fire may be built within twenty-five (25) feet of any building on abutting property.

Chapter 7. Damaged Structures

#4-701 No owner or occupant of land in the Village shall fail within 180 days to either remove or repair, or cause to be removed or repaired, any damage to structures or any portion of structures thereon caused by fire or other disaster when such damage is visible from any off-premises location, provided, however, said time limit may be increased to no more than one year for good cause with the approval of the Trustees. The existence for more than a year of damaged structures, or portions thereof, on land in the Village caused by fire or other disaster and visible from any off-premises location, is hereby declared to be a public nuisance. In addition to a fine provided for violation of this section and any other remedy provided by

law for the abatement of a public nuisance, the Board of Trustees may seek and obtain an injunction against any person in violation of this section in such manner as may be provided for by law. After written notices from the Trustees of a violation, each month the situation is not corrected constitutes a separate violation. If, in the opinion of the Trustees, the condition presents a safety hazard and the owner cannot or will not take corrective action upon written notice of the Trustees, the Trustees may take corrective action and charge any costs thereto to the owner.

Chapter 8. General Nuisance, Visual or Auditory Burglar Alarms, and Animal Defecation

#4-801 (a) No person or persons shall permit any nuisance to be put in place on his or her property in the Village or on any public land within the Village of Old Bennington, to the annoyance of any other person or persons. For a violation of this section, such person or persons shall, by direction of the Trustees, remove such nuisance, and in the case of his or her failure to do so, the Trustees shall cause the same to be removed or abated, and such person or persons shall pay all expenses for removing or abating same. "Nuisance", for purposes of this provision may be described as any object which visually offends the generally accepted standards of the community or any sound which disturbs the peace and tranquility of the Village.

(b) No one shall have a burglar alarm which, when triggered, does not call either the police or a service. Frequent false alarms are a waste of police manpower and detract their attention from other matters. False alarms also disturb the peace and tranquility. Residents are asked to make every effort to prevent false alarms attributable to error or malfunction. Frequent offenders will be contacted by the Trustees. Failure to correct the situation promptly, after written notice by the Trustees, will result in the imposition of a fine for each false alarm and may result in the Trustees requiring disconnection of the audible outdoor alarm portion of the system.

(c) No person shall allow an animal under his/her control to defecate in any street, sidewalk, park or other public place or on private property without the owner's permission unless he/she immediately removes such deposit. For the purposes of this Ordinance, a failure to comply with this section shall be deemed to be a public nuisance.

Title 5. Violations

#5-101 A violation of any of the Village Ordinances shall be a civil matter enforced in accordance with the provisions of 24 V.S.A. 1974a and 1977 et seq. A civil penalty of not more than \$500 may be imposed for a violation of any of these civil ordinances. A waiver fee of \$100

shall be set for the first offence, \$200 for the second offense within six months, and \$500 for all subsequent offences within six months. In connection with continuing violations, each day that the violation continues will constitute a separate violation of any of these ordinances. Violations may also be remedied by injunctive relief as provided by law.

Title 6. Traffic

Chapter 1. Definition of Words. Phrases

#6-101 The following words and phrases when used in this Traffic Ordinance shall, for the purpose of this ordinance, have the meanings respectively ascribed to them in this section.

Crosswalks.

- (a) That portion of a roadway ordinarily included within the prolongation or connection of the lateral lines of sidewalks at intersections.
- (b) Any portion of highway or roadway distinctly indicated for pedestrians by lines or other markings on the surface.

Authorized Emergency Vehicle. Vehicles of a fire department, police department and ambulances, all of which are plainly marked and designated.

Parking. The stopping or standing of a vehicle, whether occupied or unoccupied, attended or unattended, otherwise than temporarily for the purpose of and while actually engaged in loading passengers or merchandise, or in obedience to traffic regulations or traffic signs and signals.

All Night Parking. As used in this Ordinance, the phrase "All Night Parking" or "Overnight Parking" shall mean the parking of a vehicle at a given point within the highway lines for a period of three consecutive hours or more between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m.

Chapter 2. Exception for Emergency Vehicles

#6-201 The provisions of this ordinance governing the movements, parking and standing of vehicles, shall not apply to authorized emergency vehicles while the drivers of such vehicles are operating the same in an emergency, in the necessary performance of duty. Said vehicles shall have the right of way in any street and through any procession.

Chapter 3. Emergency Vehicles

#6-301 Upon the approach of any authorized emergency vehicle or vehicles giving an audible signal by bell, siren or otherwise, and/or flashing emergency lights, the driver of every other vehicle shall immediately drive to a position as near as possible and parallel to the right hand curb of the street, clear of any intersection, and shall stop and remain in such position until the authorized emergency vehicle or vehicles shall have passed, unless otherwise directed by a Police Officer.

Chapter 4. Enforcement of Provisions

#6-401 It shall be the duty of the Police Department of this Village and the Town of Bennington Police to enforce the provisions of this ordinance. Officers of the Police Department and the Town of Bennington Police Department are hereby authorized to direct all traffic, either in person or by means of visible or audible signals in conformance with the provisions of this ordinance, provided that in the event of a fire or other emergency or to expedite traffic, or safeguard pedestrians, officers of the police or fire department may direct traffic as conditions may require, notwithstanding the provisions of this ordinance.

Chapter 5. Authorized Duties of Police Commissioner

#6-501 The Police Commissioner, with the approval of the Road Commissioner and the majority of the Board of Trustees, is hereby authorized and empowered:

- (a) To make and ensure enforcement of regulations under this ordinance
- (b) To make and ensure enforcement of temporary regulations under emergency or special conditions.
- (c) To prohibit parking in any street, space or area provided such street, space or area is marked with a sign designating such prohibition wherever such parking in his opinion would be dangerous or would seriously congest traffic.
- (d) To designate, establish and maintain by appropriate devices, marks, or lines, upon the surface of the roadway, cross walks at intersections where, in his opinion, there is particular danger to pedestrians crossing the roadway, and at such other places as he may deem necessary.
- (e) To designate, establish and maintain safety zones of such kind and character at such places as he may deem necessary for the protection of pedestrians.
- (f) To designate, establish and maintain bus stops in such public streets and in such places as are laid out by said Board of Trustees.

- (g) To designate, establish and maintain parking places by appropriate devices, signs, marks or lines, consistent with this ordinance.
- (h) To establish and maintain all official traffic signs and signals and all other signs, signals, markings and devices required or specified herein.
- (i) To designate, establish and maintain no parking zones of such kind and character and at such places as he may deem necessary for the orderly transaction of business and the relief of traffic congestion.

Chapter 6. Prohibited Signs

#6-601 It shall be unlawful for any person to place or maintain or to display upon or in view of any street, any unofficial sign, signal or device which purports to be or is in imitation of or resembles an ordinary traffic sign or signal, or which attempts to direct the movements of traffic or which hides from view or interferes with the effectiveness of any official sign or signal. Every such prohibited sign, signal or device is hereby declared to be a public nuisance, and any Police Officer is hereby empowered to remove the same or cause it to be removed without notice.

Chapter 7. Sign Indicators

#6-701 All streets which are designated "Stop" streets by the Board of Trustees, and which are marked by the "Stop" signs approved by and at the orders of the Board of Trustees shall be subject to the regulations of this section; and all traffic shall come to a complete stop before entering the intersection of such streets with other streets when so directed by such signs.

Chapter 8. Village "Stop" Signs

#6-801 The following streets are hereby designated "Stop" streets and all traffic shall come to a complete stop before entering the intersection of said streets:

- (a) The westerly spur of Monument Avenue where it joins the West Road (Route 9) from the south.
- (b) The westerly single lane spur of Monument Avenue which lies north of Route 9 and accommodates northbound traffic only, where it intersects with the easterly section of Monument Avenue.
- (c) Bank Street where it intersects Monument Avenue.
- (d) Catamount Lane where it intersects Route 9.
- (e) Seminary Lane where it intersects Route 9.

- (f) Elm Street where it intersects Monument Avenue.
- (g) Monument Avenue where it intersects Elm Street. This intersection shall require full stop compliance with all northbound and southbound vehicles.
- (h) Fairview Street where it intersects with Walloomsac Road.
- (i) Walloomsac Road where it intersects with Fairview Street. This intersection shall require full stop compliance with all eastbound and westbound vehicles.
- (j) Monument Avenue where it intersects Route 9 driving southbound from Bank Street.
- (k) **Monument Avenue where it intersects with Monument Circle and Walloomsac Road.**

All such "Stop" streets shall be marked with signs visible at night as prescribed by the Public Laws of the State of Vermont.

Chapter 9. Night Parking

#6-901 No pleasure automobile parked in accordance with the traffic rules and regulations of this Village shall be required to display any lights while so parked, provided that in the absence of such lights, the said vehicle can be parked, and is parked in such a careful and prudent manner as would not endanger or jeopardize the safety, life or property of other persons.

Chapter 10. No Parking Areas

#6-1001 No operator or driver of any vehicles shall stop, stand or park the same in any of the following places, except when necessary to avoid conflict with other traffic or in compliance with the directions of a police officer or traffic control sign or signal:

- (a) Within an intersection.
- (b) On a crosswalk.
- (c) Within six feet of a fire hydrant.
- (d) In front of or within a private driveway without the permission of the owner or lessee.
- (e) On the sidewalk.
- (f) Along the side or opposite any street excavation or obstruction.
- (g) On the roadway side of any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge of a curb or street.
- (h) Any place where official traffic signs have been erected prohibiting standing or parking.

- (i) All night or overnight parking on any street in the Village from November first to April first shall be unlawful.

Chapter 11. Parking Safety

#6-1101 No person having control or charge of a motor vehicle, shall allow such vehicle to stand or be parked on any street or roadway, within this Village, without first setting the brakes thereon and stopping the motor of such vehicle, and, when standing or parked upon a perceptible grade, without turning the wheels of such vehicles to the curb or side of the street or roadway.

Chapter 12. Speed Limits

#6-1201 A motor vehicle shall not be driven within the Village limits in a careless or negligent manner, nor in such a manner as to endanger human life, nor at a speed in excess of twenty-five miles per hour, except as noted in II of this section. A person who violates this section adopted pursuant to Vermont Statutes Title 23, Section 1007 shall be subject to fines in accordance with the schedule duly established by the Vermont legislature.

#6-1202 A motor vehicle shall not be driven upon Route 9 where it lies within the limits of the Village of Old Bennington at a speed greater than 30 (thirty) miles per hour.

Chapter 13. Pedestrian Safety

#6-1301 The driver of any vehicle shall yield the right of way to a pedestrian crossing the roadway within any marked crosswalk or within any unmarked crosswalk at the end of a block, except at intersections where the movement of traffic is being regulated by Police Officers or traffic control signals.

#6-1302 Whenever any vehicle has stopped at a marked crosswalk or at an intersection to permit a pedestrian to cross the roadway, it shall be unlawful for the driver of any vehicle approaching from the rear to overtake and pass such a stopped vehicle.

Chapter 14. Yielding Right of Way to Pedestrians

#6-1401 At intersections where traffic is controlled by traffic control signals or by Police Officers, drivers of vehicles shall yield the right of way to pedestrians crossing or those who have started to cross the roadway on a green or "Go" signal.

Chapter 15. Fire Apparatus, Fire Lanes

#6-1501 It shall be unlawful for the driver of any vehicle other than one on official business, to follow closer than five hundred feet any fire apparatus traveling in response to an alarm, or to drive into or stop any vehicle within the fire lanes as established by members of the fire or Police Department.

Chapter 16. Fire Hose

#6-1601 No vehicles shall be driven over an unprotected hose of the fire department when laid down in any street or private driveway to be used at any fire or alarm of fire, without the consent of the fire department official in command, if one is present.

Chapter 17. Stops Before Crossing Sidewalks

#6-1701 The driver of a vehicle emerging from an alley, driveway or building shall stop such vehicle immediately prior to driving onto a sidewalk or into the sidewalk area extending across said alleyway, driveway or building.

Chapter 18. Driving on Sidewalks

#6-1801 The driver of a vehicle shall not drive on any sidewalk except at a permanent or temporary driveway, without first obtaining the consent of said Board of Trustees by resolution at a regular or special meeting at which a quorum shall be present.

Chapter 19. Driving on Closed Streets

#6-1901 It shall be unlawful for an operator or driver of a motor vehicle to drive on any street that has been closed by order of the Road Commissioner.

Chapter 20. Vehicular Noise or Smoke

#6-2001 No person operating a motor vehicle, motorcycle or like vehicle within the Village limits shall cause any unreasonable amount of noise or smoke to escape. This section shall be

construed to prevent the unnecessary and continuous blowing of horns, and the driving of motor vehicle without a functioning muffler.

Chapter 21. Traffic Obstruction

#6-2101 The operator of any motor vehicle shall move his vehicle immediately at any time when obstructing traffic and shall, at all times, be subject to the orders of the members of the Police Department.

Chapter 22. Disobeying Signs or Signals

#6-2201 It shall be unlawful for the driver of any vehicle to disobey the instructions of an official traffic sign or signal placed in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance, unless otherwise directed by a Police Officer.

Chapter 23. Business Stands, Loaded Trucks

#6-2301 No public carrier, express wagon driver, or driver of any freight truck, hackney coach, cab, sleigh, auto truck, automobile, taxi cab, or other vehicles shall occupy any part of any highway or street or public square or common in this Village as a stand for business, except in such streets, square, common or commons or parts thereof as may from time to time be designated as such stands by a resolution of the Board of Trustees; nor shall any person leave any vehicle laden with wood, hay, lumber, timber, straw, coal, oil or other bulky material standing in any public highway or common, to the inconvenience of any person, for more than thirty minutes in any one hour; and the driver of any vehicle as aforesaid shall cause the same to be removed forthwith when directed by a police officer or other Village official so to do.

Chapter 24. No Passing on Route 9

#6-2401 A motor vehicle being operated on Route 9, so called, shall not pass another vehicle traveling in the same direction upon said highway at any point between the easterly and westerly boundaries of this Village. A person violating this ordinance shall be fined in accordance with Vermont Statute Title 23.

Chapter 25. Vehicular Obstruction

#6-2501 No vehicle shall stand across any public highway or street in such a manner as to obstruct the travel over the same.

Chapter 26. One-Way Streets

#6-2601 The following streets are designated as one-way streets:

- (a) Monument Avenue from north to south beginning at Route 9 at the top of Town Hill to its intersection with Church Lane
- (b) Monument Avenue from south to north (western spur) where it intersects with Route 9 (south section)
- (c) Monument Avenue south to north (western spur) which lies directly north of Route 9 (north section)

Chapter 27. Yield Signs

#6-2701 The driver of a vehicle shall yield the right of way in compliance with Yield signs posted at the following locations:

- (a) At the northwesterly side of Walloomsac Road and Monument Circle. This intersection will require yielding to all East and West bound traffic.
- (b) At the Northeasterly side of Monument Avenue and Church Lane, in front of the Old First Church. This intersection will require yielding to all east, south and west bound traffic.

Chapter 28. No Right Turn Sign

#6-2801 The driver of a vehicle shall obey the No Right Turn sign posted at the intersection of Walloomsac Road and Monument Circle, on the northwesterly side. This intersection will require no right-hand turn from the Monument Circle to Walloomsac Road.